
Questions and Answers. 

 

Written Questions Prior and After the Preproposal Conference Meeting   

 

1. Q. Is this Solicitation a Managed Fund? 

A. No, this is not managed fund. 

 

2. Section B.2.3 

Q. What is meant by Biweekly Rates Per Premium? 

A. The annual premium divided by 26 constitutes the bi-weekly 

premium. There are 26 pay periods in a year.    

 

Q. What is meant by Estimated number of Premiums? 

A. This is an estimated number of people to be covered were premiums 

will be paid. 

 

Q. Family (3 or more individual) 317. Is this the number of Children? 

A. This is the estimated number of families  

 

Q. What is meant by Rate per Premium Extended Bi-Weekly 

A. Your biweekly premium (annual premium divided by 26) 

 

Q. What is the difference between Rate per Premium Extended Biweekly 

total and Rate per Premium Extended Bi- Weekly Total? These appear in 

two different columns on the same table. 

A. The first rate per premium is to insert the unit price and second is the 

total multiplied by the estimated number of premiums. 

 

3. Q. Are the Premiums to be Charged on a Bi- Weekly basis and not Monthly? 

A. Refer to section G, G.4.2 frequency of Payments. Contractor may submit 

invoices quarterly for payment to be made at the beginning of the month 

for which insurance coverage is provided in accordance with FAR 

32.404. 

 

4. Q. Is the scheme on a co-payment arrangement with the embassy covering 

80% of all claims and member paying 20%? 

A. Premium share or premium split, is an arrangement between the Embassy 

and enrolled Embassy employees for the employer/employee split of the 

premium cost.  The embassy pays the entire contract cost to the vendor 

and collects 10% from employees via payroll deduction. 



 

Co-payment is the % the employee pays toward each medical appt, for 

example, hospitalization. the employee pays for 0%, the insurance covers 

100% of the cost. 

 

For a regular dr appt, the employee (patient) pays 20% copay and the 

insurance company covers the 80%. 

 

5. Q. What is the minimum acceptable coverage for Outpatient? 

A.  Refer to section C, Outpatient Services. Coverage is different depending 

on services provided. 

 

6. Q. Defense Base Act Insurance Premium: What is this meant to cover 

against? Does this apply locally, and can it only be obtained from companies 

appearing in the link? 

A. Refer to section L, Defense Base Act (DBA) Insurance premium costs 

are covering the offerors employees working on the contract to include 

American citizens, Individuals hired in the United States or its 

possessions, regardless of citizenship, Host Country Nationals (HCNs) 

and Third Country Nationals (TCNs) working overseas.  DBA can only 

be obtained from the list overseas appearing on the link. 

 

7. Q. Concerning the solicitation for the medical scheme for US Embassy staff, 

kindly let us know if it restricted to an Insurance scheme. We ask this 

because our company Medlink Services Limited specializes in implementing 

Administered Medical schemes or what is commonly known as "Managed 

Fund. 

A.  The solicitation is not restricted. Its full and open competition as 

synopsized.  

 

      8. Q. Quotation period. Please specify the policy period one needs to quote for? 

A.  Refer to section B of the solicitation. Proposals shall be priced for base 

plus all option years. 

 

     9. Q. RFP describes that we quote for a 'base year' and also for 'four one-year 

option periods'. Not sure what this means and could it please be clarified, health 

insurance premiums are quoted as a fixed price per month/annum.               



         A. Refer to section B.2.2 ,This is a fixed price with economic price 

adjustment requirements type contract under which will be issued firm, fixed-price 

task orders. The fixed prices/premium rates for the health insurance services as 

specified in Section C. 

Regarding the meaning of base year and four one year option periods, this is the 

total pricing of the contract which can run for five years if options are exercised. 

 

    10. Q. Member categories. Official Residence Expense Staff and Peace Corps 

staff are included as 'Riders', does this mean they are not part of the main 

membership that is seeking health insurance coverage? 

          A.  We allow other groups who are part of the Embassy community to be 

included as riders to the contract to benefit from being part of a larger pool of 

participants; the premiums will be paid through a separate funding account.    

 

    11. Q. Coverage. What are the rider benefits and who is responsible for 

providing that coverage? Can the excess coverage (C.1.1.21) be explained in more 

detail. 

 A.  Benefits remain the same for the rider categories.    

Excess coverage (C.1.1.21) is 100% paid by the employee for double the overall 

maximum annual reimbursement level for every year of the contract.  This is the 

only benefit that if elected by an employee that is 100% paid by the employee.    

 

     12. Q. Premiums. Official Residence Expense Staff and Peace Corps staff rates 

are specified in a format that does not make sense. Are they able to translate those 

premiums in a plpm format because LH will be responsible for billing these two 

groups.  

A.  The information provided for ORE Staff and Peace Corps is to assist 

you understand the numbers and ages of the employees, spouse and 

children. The rates in section B.2.3, B.2.4, B2.5, B2.6 and B2.7 will 

be applicable for health coverage. 



13.   Q. The premium tables is section B.2.3, B.2.4, B2.5, B2.6 and B2.7 needs to 

be clarified please. 

 A. These are pricing tables for base plus all options which shall be filled. 

 

14.  Q. Section B.3 defines the 'retention amount' and that the 'retention amount' 

is fixed and cannot be changed. This will be difficult because there are cases where 

we may adjust our risk margins (which forms part of the retention amount) based 

on the market performance at that point in time. Can the client please give 

examples of 'retention amounts' they have seen in the past. 

A. Refer to section B.3.1, if the Contractor requests a price adjustment under 

B.4 below, the Contractor shall present cost experience data that includes the 

retention amount. For purposes of any economic price adjustment, this 

retention amount is a fixed amount that is a part of the premium amounts in 

B.2.  This retention amount will not be adjusted for any reason. 

 

There are no retention amounts history as this is the first time we are 

implementing this type of contract. 

 

15. Q. Are premiums fully funded by the employer? Profit shares work better if 

premiums are fully funded by employer. 

A.  Under Global Management Coverage (GMC), employees contribute 

to 10% of the premium cost. 

 

16.  Q. Claims data. They have given total claims data over the last three years, 

are you able to provide more seriatim data; i.e. claims data per life per month for 

that last three years? 

A.  Data not available  

 17.  Q. Benefit Table. There are a number of benefits in this table that are not 

paid in full, some of them inpatient. This is not something we're comfortable with 

doing because co-payments in an African context, especially for in patient services, 



are not the norm. Can the benefit proposal submission be changed or will the 

insurer be disqualified if changes are made? 

 A.  Benefits and benefit levels of coverage should meet or exceed the levels 

of coverage in the Request for Proposals.    

 

18.   Q. Substance abuse is not funded on our standard policy offering, please 

confirm if this needs to be catered for the RFP submission. 

A.  Yes, confirmed:  substance abuse is often the visible sign of an 

underlying medical problem. Ie depression often results in people 

looking to substances to medicate.  

 

19. Q. On the fertility benefit, if it's a medical condition that needs addressing 

and just coincidentally helps with infertility then we will fund it. However if it's a 

condition that purely relates to infertility then we don't. Please confirm if this is the 

requirement of what needs to be covered. 

A.   Yes, confirmed.  Exclusions are listed re: infertility.  Treatment of 

conditions which may cause infertility are covered – refer to C.1.1.12. 

and C.1.3 for fertility exclusions.  

20. Q. Regarding the medication of long term suppression of HIV/Aids, Liberty 

proposes that it is included we believe there is adequate support in Zambia main 

centres. Confirm if this can be included. 

A.  HIV/AIDS care is covered sufficiently. Refer to  C.1.1.15 

 

21.  Q. On Catastrophic coverage, this is the first time we have seen such as 

request. The amount of ZMW 146 000, is this paid as a once off lump sum or is it 

an additional amount to cover claims once the limit has been exceeded. Please 

provide further clarity on this benefit request. 

A.  No, this is not a lump sum: This is an additional amount to cover 

claims once the annual maximum reimbursement limit has been 

exceeded due to a significant “catastrophic” health issue.   (Generally 

this would cover additional medical treatment expenses for a 



significant medical occurrence or diagnosis, generally medical events 

that require extensive care.)   

 

22.  Q. Please elaborate what is meant for this benefit Out-of-Country Medical 

Travel: Reserved 

A. This means it’s not applicable. (the embassy is not including this benefit 

in the solicitation.)   

 

23.  Q. On the EAP benefit, Liberty outsources this benefit to a third party 

provider. Please provide a detailed list of EAP services to be included. 

A.  We do not have a list of these benefits – you may request the vendors 

to identify what exactly is covered.  

 

24.  Q. On the excess coverage benefit, we can implement this is the excess 

cover if applied on a family level instead of member level. The employer must 

collect the premiums from the employee, Liberty is unable to collect these 

premiums directly from the employees. 

A. Excess coverage is opted into directly between the vendor and the 

employee.   

 

25.  Q. The annual maximum limit of ZMW 146000 is very low based on our 

experience, please confirm if this can be adjusted. 

 A. Currently no adjustment is authorized. 

26. Q Need more information to address.   

1. Where should we attach the SF33 form? 

A. Refer to section L.2.SUMMARY OF INSTRUCTIONS.  Each proposal must 

consist of the following separate volumes: 



 

2. Where should we attach the amendment form? 

A. same as above. 

 

27. Q. Please provide average insured member counts associated with the Claims 

history for the years 2017, 2018 and 2019 provided in the solicitation. 

      A.  

YEAR Average number of members 

2017 1,515 

2018 1,492 

2019 1,484 

 

28. Q. How many members exhausted their policy limit within the last policy 

year? Please note we are not seeking protected private information, we do not 

need the names or identification; we just need to know the total number of large 

losses and the amounts to assess the risk and price accordingly. 

       A. Our current coverage does not have limits. 

 

29. Q. Are there any HIV/AIDs cases? If Yes, please provide number (please note 

we are not seeking protected private information, we do not need the names or 

identification; we just need to know the total number of people who are currently 

being treated for HIV/AIDs to assess the risk and price accordingly). 

       A. Yes, there are HIV/AIDS cases. Due to high level confidentiality policies that 

we observe, we do not know how many.  

 

30. Q. When is this coverage likely to commence? 



       A. Usually one month after a winning proposal has been selected.  

 

31. Q. The estimated number of employees in B.2.3 do not match with the counts 

in Section J. Can you please explain the differences in the counts? 

       A. Number of premiums in B.2.3 are estimates whereas those in Section J are 

actual as of May 1, 2020.  

 

32.Q. In the question asked and answered document, questions 1 and 7 have 

contradicting answers. So I wanted to clarify if this solicitation is open to Managed 

Funds and not only insurance. 

      A. Not open to Managed Funds. 

 

33. Q. With regards to Section B, the pricing, we do not ask for premiums but an 

administration fee per employee per month. Could you advise on how to then fill 

in this section? Does that mean we should divide the administration fee per 

employee by 26 in order to fill up the sections for bi-weekly rates? 

       A. Refer to section B.2.3 through B.2.7, the estimated number of premiums   

shall be multiplied by the Rate per Premium Rate per Premium Extended Bi-

Weekly Total. 

Your biweekly premium (annual premium divided by 26) 

34.Q. Do we have to prepare separate offerings for the ORE and Peace corps as 

they will be paying us separately? 

A. No – premium rates from section B.2.3 through B.2.7 shall be applicable 

to ORE and Peace Corps. 

 

35. Q. In section K, clause K.6 d) please explain the table that includes the FAR 

clause. 



          A. refer to section K, K.6.d “(d) The Offeror has completed the annual 

representations and certifications electronically in SAM accessed through 

https://www.sam.gov .After reviewing the SAM information, the Offeror verifies 

by submission of the offer that the representations and certifications currently 

posted electronically that apply to this solicitation as indicated in paragraph (c) of 

this provision have been entered or updated within the last 12 months, are 

current, accurate, complete, and applicable to this solicitation (including the 

business size standard applicable to the NAICS code referenced for this 

solicitation), as of the date of this offer and are incorporated in this offer by 

reference (see FAR 4.1201); except for the changes identified below [offeror to 

insert changes, identifying change by clause number, title, date]. These amended 

representation(s) and/or certification(s) are also incorporated in this offer and are 

current, accurate, and complete as of the date of this offer.  

 

Any changes provided by the offeror are applicable to this solicitation only, 

and do not result in an update to the representations and certifications posted on 

SAM”.  

(End of Provision) 

 

36. Q. B.2.3 the numbers indicated in the table (i.e. 317) does not match with the 

numbers given in the tables from page 40? 

       A. Number of premiums in B.2.3 are estimates whereas those in Section J are 

actual as of May 1, 2020.  

 

37. Q. Does self Plus One mean 32 or 64? This applies to category C. 

 A. Self plus one = 32 employees who have one additional life under their 

cover. So it will be 64 people in total.  

 

https://www.sam.gov/


38. Q. Seeking clarification on the Bi-weekly rates per premium estimating 

number of premiums in the below column? How is this calculation going to be 

done? 

A. Your biweekly premium (annual premium divided by 26) 

 

38. Q. Based on B.2.8 on page 7 - are we expected to issue premiums upfront 

from base year to fourth year? 

A. Refer to section B. B.2.8. Grand Total of Base plus All Option Years. This is 

to total up premiums for Base plus four option years.  

 

39. Q. Clarification on Rider Category such as excess and catastrophic coverage. 

       A. Refer to C.1.1.21 Excess Coverage, Additional coverage equal to 146,000 

ZMW per covered individual per contract year. This excess coverage will be 

offered as an optional benefit to LE Staff.  LE Staff must pay 100% of the premium 

if they elect Excess Coverage.  

Refer to C.1.1.16 Catastrophic Coverage, Additional coverage equal to 146,000 

ZMW per covered individual per contract year. Catastrophic conditions shall be 

defined as major medical conditions occurring as a result of a 

single/illness/accident or closely related set of major illnesses (or conditions 

relating to a single accident) that exceed the standard maximum coverage limit 

 

40. Q. How will the percentages be applied on the different benefits as it is 

indicated in the documents? Page 10 to 13. For example if I have 25,000 in 

outpatient does it mean a member will only access K20,000 (80%) a member is 

expected to pay for the service? 

A. If a benefit is not covered 100%, the employee will pay for the 

percentage that is not covered.  

 

41. Q. Are the members going to have a co-payment or excess? 



A.   Covered individuals pay a copay on certain benefits that are not 

covered at 100% 

 

42. Q. Is access to the scheme based on reimbursement from the design of the 

document? 

A. No. If a benefit is not covered 100%, the employee will pay for the 

percentage that is not covered.  

43. Q. Which countries are frequently visited and will the travelers be paying out 

of pocket and request for reimbursement upon returning? 

       A. For out of country medical attention, employees frequently request South 

Africa and India. However, our staff travel the world over to include the USA and 

Europe. It is better if covered individuals do not pay out of pocket, but send the 

claim to the insurance company for payment to the medical office/hospital. 

Payment protocols can be put in place such as the patient informs the insurance 

company of the appointment in another country/hospital etc and work payment 

logistics out ahead of time. 

 

44. Q. Do we have frequent travelers and does the Embassy buy OTI for those 

travelling? 

       A. Yes, we have frequent travelers. We assume OTI means Other Travel 

Insurance. Yes, on official travel orders, the Embassy buys travel insurance.  

 

45. Q. Is one authorized to individually travel to a different country with the main 

reason of travel to access medical services and come back for refunds? 

       A. There are no authorization requirements for deciding to go outside the 

country.  (Out of country travel does have authorization requirement from the 

physician.)  It is expected /preferred that the insurance vendor would pay the bill 

directly to the health provider. 

 



46. Q. How will the excess coverage benefit operate and how will the premium 

from the members be paid? Is there any deliberate policy to protect the provider 

on losses for members who default on payments? 

       A.  The covered individual will pay the premium directly to the vendor.  There 

is no Embassy role and there is no policy to protect for any default on payments.  

 

47. Q. Is the total in Exhibit A including the totals from Exhibit B and C? 

       A. Exhibit A has three parts: i. Employee statistics; ii. Employee spouses by 

gender within age ranges; and 3. dependent children by gender within age ranges.  

Exhibit B is the summary of claims paid in the past 3 years while Exhibit C is the 

list of hospitals that are required.  

 

48. Q. Likewise, are the claims figures shared in the document accounting for 

members in Exhibits B and C. 

       A. The claims figures in Exhibit B account for members in Exhibit A. Exhibit C 

(list of hospitals that are required) is not relevant to this question.  

 

49. Q. Is the excess coverage benefit going to be a separate or additional cover 

other than the main more. Do we need to include an additional quote for this 

category? 

      A.  Yes, Excess coverage is separate and the vendor will need to provide a 

quote for this as a stand alone benefit. Vendors will treat the benefit like a rider:   

Individual employees, once premiums are identified, will elect to have the 

additional coverage, and the vendor will deal directly with the employee who 

elects the coverage for premium payment, etc. 

 

50. Q. Can an institution submit two bids, say one with a partner and the other as 

a direct bid? In other ways, is brokerage accepted on this. 



A. Yes an institution can submit two bids, but one will be lowest cost, 

technically qualified offer meeting the requirements of SECTION L 

INSTRUCTIONS, CONDITIONS AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS. 

 

 

ORAL QUESTIONS 

1. Q. Kindly provide us with a population list to assist price accurately? 

     A. HR will provide the population list to offerors on the solicitation mailing list, 

post on betaSAM.gov and Embassy website. 

2. Q. Share with us the power point presentation slides showing important 

solicitation highlights. 

    A. Procurement will share with all offerors on the solicitation mailing list, post 

on betaSAM.gov and Embassy website. 


